
          

 

 

CAPTAIN’S KEY 
DEPENDENT DISTRICT 

 

PALM BEACH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 13, 2022 
6:00 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.captainskeydd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 

    



 
AGENDA 

CAPTAIN’S KEY DEPENDENT DISTRICT 
The Oaks Center at 2501A 

Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens 
Florida 33410 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
September 13, 2022 

6:00 p.m. 
 

            
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………….Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. June 14, 2022 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing……………………………………...Page 2 

G. Old Business 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Approval of Shenandoah Drain Cleaning Proposal (Captains Lndg Cul-De-Sac)…..Page 5 

2. Consider Approval of Easement Encroachment Request………………………………………Page 9 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Financial Report………………………………………………………………………………...Page 17 

2. Consider Invoices……………………………………………………………………………….Page 21 

J. Board Members Comments 

K. Adjourn 



Page 1



CAPTAIN’S KEY DEPENDENT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JUNE 14, 2022 
 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Jason Pierman called the June 14, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the Captain’s 
Key Dependent District (the “District”) to order at 6:05 p.m. at The Oaks Center located at 2501A 
Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Mr. Pierman presented proof of publication that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the Palm Beach Daily Business Review on October 1, 2021, as part of the District’s 
Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Meeting Schedule, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
Mr. Pierman determined that the attendance of Chairman John Banister, Vice Chairman Russell Jones 
and Supervisors Trey Mahoney, Yeffry Jave and Judge Moss constituted a quorum and it was in order 
to proceed with the meeting.   
 
Also in attendance was:  District Manager Jason Pierman. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  May 10, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 
 
Mr. Pierman presented the minutes of May 10, 2022, Regular Board Meeting for approval.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Jones, seconded by Mr. Mahoney, approving the minutes of the May 10, 
2022, Regular Board Meeting, as presented, and upon being put to a vote, the motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
The Regular Board Meeting was then recessed and the Public Hearing was opened. 
 
G. PUBLIC HEARING 
 1.  Proof of Publication 
 
Mr. Pierman presented proof of publication that notice of the Public Hearing had been published in 
the Palm Beach Daily Business Review on May 25, 2022, and June 1, 2022, as legally required.  

Page 2



 
 2.  Receive Public Comment on the Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget 
 
Mr. Pierman noted that there were no members of the public in attendance. 
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-02 – Adopting a Fiscal year 2022/2023 Final Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2022-02 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CAPTAIN’S KEY DEPENDENT DISTRICT 
ADOPTING A FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 BUDGET.  

 
A motion was made by Mr. Mahoney, seconded by Mr. Banister and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2022-02, as presented. 
 
The Public Hearing was then closed and the Regular Board Meeting was reconvened. 
 
H. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Update Regarding Drainage Report and Sinkhole 
 
Mr. Pierman provided an update, explaining that, after speaking with the contractor in more detail, 
the proposed solution was not what was expected.  He is currently obtaining proposals from other 
firms to find a more suitable solution.   
 
Mr. Jones noted that the storm grate across from his house was broken.  Following discussion, the 
Board directed Mr. Pierman to have it replaced.   
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Meeting 
Schedule 
 
Resolution No. 2022-03 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-03 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
CAPTAIN’S KEY DEPENDENT DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING A 
REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 AND 
SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Mahoney, seconded by Mr. Moss and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2022-03, as amended. 
 
J. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

 
Mr. Pierman reminded the Board to submit their 2021 Form 1 and noted that the 20-Year Stormwater 
Report had been completed and would be submitted before the June 20, 2022, deadline. 

Page 3



 
 
1.  Financial Report 

 
 2.  Consider Invoices 
 
K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further comments from the Board Members. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Jones, seconded 
by Mr. Banister and unanimously passed adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 6:29 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 
 

Page 4



Page 1 of 1

 DATE: August 22, 2022
SUBMITTED TO: Special District Services

STREET: 2501A Oaks Road
CITY, STATE & ZIP: Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410

PHONE: (561) 630-4922
FAX:

EMAIL: jpierman@sdsinc.org
JOB NAME: Captains Landing Clean/TV

ATTENTION: Jason Pierman

PROPOSAL #P26875

          We propose to furnish a crew and all necessary equipment to clean and TV 85 LF of pipe holding the plaster and other debris
at the above mentioned job location. at the above mentioned job location. This work will be performed at our following unit prices
and Actual Units will be Billed:

Clean/TV (85LF) (at $4,950.00 Per Day) 1 day(s) $4,950.00
Estimated Total: $4,950.00

          Note: Pipe transitions from 15"RCP to 24" CMP. 24"CMP is in real bad shape with overgrown roots (See Pics)

NOTE: One way travel time for all hourly vehicles listed above. Four hour minimum. This proposal includes removal of all loose
debris from the structures and pipes (excluding hazardous waste), if non-hazardous contaminated liquids or soils are encountered,
such as oil, gas, fuel, hydraulic oil, etc., the customer will be required to have the material analyzed, by an approved lab, then
approved by a disposal facility, prior to Shenandoah transporting and disposing of the material, additional cost for specialty hauling
and disposal will be applied to the invoice, along with documented receipt. However, we are not responsible for problems occurring
during or after cleaning due to pre-existing condition, original installation or design.

          This proposal may be withdrawn if not accepted within 30 days. Payment terms net 30 days.
(If we encounter an Insurance compliance fee requirement, this fee will be invoiced in addition to the above rates.)

          All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed in a workmanlike manner according to standard
practices. Price above is only an estimate of foreseen conditions. Unforeseen conditions can affect the amount of time to complete
the work, therefore increasing or decreasing estimate. All agreements are contingent upon strikes, accidents or delays beyond our
control. Unless noted above engineering, permits, testing and bonds are not included in the pricing. Owner is to carry fire, tornado
and other necessary insurance. Our workers are fully covered by Workman's Compensation Insurance. Parties to this
proposal/contract expressly waive all tort claims against each other and limit their remedies to breach of contract.

SIGNATURE: 

SHENANDOAH GENERAL CONSTRUCTION CO. TITLE DATE
Ramy Wassef Estimator 08/22/2022

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL / SIGN & RETURN

          The above prices, specification and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are authorized to do the work as
specified.

SIGNATURE: ____________________________________________________________________

 COMPANY NAME: DATE:
 REPRESENTATIVE: TITLE:

Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



1 

 

 

ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT 
 

THIS IS AN ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT, entered into this   day of 
 , 2022 (the “Agreement”), by and between: 

 
CAPTAIN’S KEY DEPENDENT DISTRICT, a local unit of 
special purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 189, 
Florida Statutes, located in unincorporated Palm Beach County, 
Florida, and whose mailing address is 2501A Burns Road, Palm 
Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 (the “District”), 

 
and 

 
JOHN R. BANISTER AND LYNN M. BANISTER, whose 
address is 12127 Captain’s Landing, North Palm Beach, Florida, 
33408 (collectively, the “Owner”). 

 
RECITALS: 

 
WHEREAS, Owner owns the following described property having the property address 

within Palm Beach County, Florida, of 12127 Captain’s Landing, North Palm Beach, Florida, 
33408, and being more particularly described as: 

 
Lot 8, of Captain’s Key Plat, according to the Plat thereof, 
recorded in Plat Book 28, at Page 177, of the Public Records of 
Palm Beach County, Florida; Folio No. 00-43-41-33-08-000-0080  
(the “Owner Property”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the District is the owner of certain real property identified as Captains Key 

Private Rds K/A Oyster Bay, Captains Key Dr & Captains Landing (Less Pt Lyg E of & adj to 
Lts 2 & 3), CAPTAIN’S KEY PLAT, recorded at Plat Book 28, Page 177 of the public records 
of Palm Beach County, Florida (Folio No./PCN: 00-43-41-33-08-001-0000) and is the grantee of 
a drainage easement, said drainage easement being identified on and dedicated to the District 
pursuant to the Captain’s Key Plat, recorded at Plat Book 28, Page 177 of the public records of 
Palm Beach County, Florida (“District Property”); 

 
WHEREAS, Owner desires permission from District to encroach into the District 

Property by maintaining a boat dock within a portion of the District Property (the 
“Encroachment”), which Encroachment is located on District owned property or within a District 
easement and is less than six (6’) feet from the edge of water; 

 
WHEREAS, Owner has made a formal request with the District to minimally encroach 

Page 9



2 

 

into the District Property; 
 

WHEREAS, the Encroachment occurs at Encroachment Area described below and herein; 
 

WHEREAS, the District has determined that the proposed Encroachment into the 
District Property is minimal and will not presently impact District operations; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District has determined that the original easement is no longer relevant 

to the operations of the District due to the fact that it currently lies within the footprint of the 
canal; and 

 
WHEREAS, at a regular meeting, the District Board of Supervisors granted the Owner’s 

request to encroach into the District Property, as limited by this instrument, and authorized the 
proper District officials to execute this Agreement. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and the conditions 

contained in this Agreement, and other good and valuable consideration, the adequacy and 
receipt of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated into this Agreement. 

 
2. Description/Depiction of Encroachment Area: See attached Exhibit “A” 

(“Encroachment Area”), incorporated herein by reference. The Encroachment may 
not be expanded, modified or altered within or beyond the Encroachment Area 
without the express written consent of the District, which consent shall be evidenced 
by a written amendment to this Agreement, executed by District and Owner, and 
recorded in the public records of Palm Beach County, Florida. 

 
3. Owner agrees to indemnify and hold the District harmless from any and all liability 

incurred now or in the future as a result of any claim, injury, death or property 
damage, directly or indirectly resulting due to the existence of, or the failure to 
maintain the Encroachment or any part of it, including for liability arising out of or in 
any way connected to the acts, omissions, or negligence of Owner or its agents. 

 
4. It is understood that this Encroachment Agreement is granted to Owner for its sole 

benefit and as a special exception to the policy of the District and that this Agreement 
shall be construed most strictly in favor of the District and against Owner. 

 
5. Owner has obtained any and all required building and zoning permits from Palm 

Beach County and any other governmental entity or agency having jurisdiction. A 
copy of the applicable permit has been provided by Owner to the District Manager 
of the District upon receipt. All Encroachments shall be constructed in strict 
accordance with this Agreement and applicable permits and shall be regularly 
maintained by Owner.  
 

Page 10



3 

 

6. It is agreed that Owner shall remove the Encroachment or any portion of it upon 
termination of this Agreement or at any time that the District requires the use of any 
portion of the Encroachment Area, or determines that continuation of such 
Encroachment is not in the public interest. Such removal shall be at Owner’s sole 
cost and expense. In the event Owner fails to remove all or any part of such 
Encroachment within thirty (30) days after written demand by the District to do so, 
District is authorized to remove the Encroachment or any portion of it and all costs 
associated with the removal shall become a lien against Owner Property as 
described above, which lien may be enforced through foreclosure and shall include 
costs and expenses to enforce the terms of this Agreement, court costs and 
reasonable attorney’s fees. Owner hereby waives any claims for damages against 
the District, its employees, officials, or agents, arising out of or in any way 
connected with the removal of any part of the Encroachment by District. 

 
7. This Agreement shall not be effective until it has been executed by all parties and 

recorded in the public records of Palm Beach County, Florida, at Owner’s expense. 
 

8. The provisions of this Agreement are covenants running with the land described as 
Owner Property above and are binding upon Owner and its respective successors 
and assigns. 
 

9. This Agreement shall be of no force and effect if not properly executed by all 
parties within ninety (90) days from the date first appearing above unless the parties 
by mutual agreement in writing shall, for good cause, extend the time for execution. 

Page 11



4 

 

IN WITNESS OF THE FOREGOING, the parties have set their hands and seals the day 
and year first written above. 

 
ATTEST: CAPTAIN’S KEY DEPENDENT 

DISTRICT  
 

By:   
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chair/Vice-Chair 

 
 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA } 
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH } 

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this   day of  , 

2022, by  , as Chair/Vice-Chair of the Board of Supervisors for 
CAPTAIN’S KEY DEPENDENT DISTRICT, who is personally known and/or produced         
as identification who being duly sworn, deposes and says that the aforementioned is true and 
correct to the best of his knowledge. 

 
 

Notary Public, State of Florida [signature] 
 

Name of Notary [Typed, Printed or Stamped] 
 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA } 
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH } 

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this   day of  , 

2022, by Jason Pierman, as Secretary/Assistant Secretary of the Board of Supervisors for 
CAPTAIN’S KEY DEPENDENT DISTRICT, who is personally known and/or produced                        
as identification who being duly sworn, deposes and says that the aforementioned is true and 
correct to the best of his/her knowledge. 

 
 

Notary Public, State of Florida [signature] 
 

Name of Notary [Typed, Printed or Stamped] 

Page 12



5 

 

WITNESSES: JOHN R. BANISTER  
 AND LYNN M. BANISTER 
 

 
Print Name: John R. Banister 

 
 

Print Name: Lynn M. Banister 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA } 
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH            } 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _________, 
2022, by John R. Banister and Lynn M. Banister. They are personally known to me or have 
produced ________________ as identification and did not (did) take an oath. 

 
 

Notary Public, State of Florida 
[Signature] 

 
 

 

 
 
My Commission Expires: 

Name of Notary 
[Typed, Printed or Stamped] 

 
 

Commission No.: 

Page 13



6 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

ENCROACHMENT AREA 

Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



 Captain's Key
Dependent District

   Financial Report For
August 2022

Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



 9:24 AM
 09/06/22
 Accrual Basis

 Captain's Key Dependent District
 Check Register

 As of September 6, 2022
Date Num Name Memo Credit

101.125  CSB # 6006

06/02/2022 SDS 2,062.49

07/01/2022 Comcast 204.40

07/01/2022 ALM 227.60

07/05/2022 FPL 55.64

07/05/2022 Frontsteps 315.00

07/05/2022 Greentone 158.00

07/05/2022 Higgins 2,000.00

07/05/2022 PBC Tax Collector 1.00

07/05/2022 Power Plant 1,150.00

07/05/2022 Seacoast 515.67

07/05/2022 SDS 2,687.56

07/05/2022 Victory 2,497.47

07/15/2022 Comcast 208.40

07/18/2022 Caldwell Pacetti 580.00

07/18/2022 Grau 1,700.00

07/18/2022 Power Plant 1,417.00

08/02/2022 FPL 52.79

08/02/2022 Frontsteps 315.00

08/02/2022 Seacoast 195.99

08/02/2022 SDS 2,009.26

08/02/2022 Victory 333.00

08/15/2022 Comcast 198.40

08/16/2022 Power Plant 1,150.00

08/16/2022 Greentone 255.00

Total 101.125  CSB # 6006 20,289.67
TOTAL 20,289.67

 Page 1 of 1Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81


	Captain's Key Dependent District - September 13, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	June 14, 2022 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes
	Consider Approval of Shenandoah Drain Cleaning Proposal (Captains Lndg Cul-De-Sac)
	Consider Approval of Easement Encroachment Request
	Financial Report
	Consider Invoices




